
 

 

 

LOWELL PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MEETING 

Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, February 7th, 2023, 6:00 P.M.  

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

4. CHANGES TO AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM January 7th, 2023, MEETING 

 

6. OLD BUSINESS 

A. None 

 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

A. General Rezoning Application - ZMA23-01- ROB PRESSLEY/LOWELL OZB, 

LLC  

Request to rezone approximately 4.48 acres from VSR (Vehicle Service & Repair 

District) and CIV (Civic District) to IND (Industrial District). The subject properties 

are located west of Phillips Street and east of Peachtree Street.  The property is owned 

by LOWELL OZB, LLC 

B. Text Amendment Application - ZTA23-01 - ROB PRESSLEY/LOWELL OZB, 

LLC  

Request to amend Article 3 - Definitions, Abbreviations and Symbols, Article 8 - 

Districts, Article 9- Building & Lot Type Standards & Specifications & Article 12 - 

Off-Street Parking, Stacking and Loading Areas of the Lowell Development 

Ordinance to allow for a new classification/use category of “ Industrial Flex Space” . 

 

101 W. First Street 
Lowell, North Carolina 28098 

 
Phone: 704-824-3518 

www.lowellnc.com 

Page 1



C. Text Amendment Application - ZTA23-02 - LOWELL STAFF 

Request to amend Section 8.4-5 - Civic District (CIV), of the Lowell Development 

Ordinance to reduce the Minimum Lot Size and Minimum Lot Width. 

D. Reservation of Utility Service - GASTON COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS - 

LOWELL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

Request to extend water service outside City of Lowell municipal limits and set new   

water service to feed Lowell Elementary School.  

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 
UPCOMING IMPORTANT DATES 

February 14th, 2023 - City Council Meeting - 6:00pm, Lowell City Hall 

March 7th, 2023 - Planning Board Meeting - 6:00pm, Lowell City Hall 

 

Page 2



 

1 | P a g e  
 

MINUTES 
Lowell Planning and Zoning Board 

Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, January 3, 2023, 6:00 P.M. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  

 

Chairman Scott Wilson, called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Planning Board 

members present: Heather Seay, David Jennings, Troy Roberts Sr., and Norris Lamb.  

Staff members present: Joe Gates, Planning Director, and Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk. 

Members of the public were also in attendance. 

 

II. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM –it was determined a quorum was reached. 

 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - led by Scott Wilson 

 

IV. CHANGES TO AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA – No changes were proposed to 

the agenda.  Board Member Lamb made a motion to approve the agenda, seconded by 

Board Member Roberts.  The vote was unanimously in favor. 

 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE NOVEMBER 1, 2022, MEETING.  

Motion was made by Board Member Jennings to approve the previous minutes, 

seconded by Board Member Seay.  The vote was unanimously in favor. 

 

VI. OLD BUSINESS – None 

 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Consideration of Master Sign Plan Application -3211 Aberdeen Blvd. (previously 

3301 Lineberger Rd) – 306406 Presented by Joe Gates. This is regarding the large 

Newell building off Interstate 85.  The applicant is asking for the maximum size 

limit to be increased to 96.4 feet from 32 feet.  Mr. Gates then pulled up the 

building plans for members to review.  Board Member Lamb asked if there is 

currently a sign here.  Mr. Gates said yes, the 96.4 ft sign is already up.  Dana 

Stowe of Sign Connection explained the complicated process of obtaining a 

permit.  The City of Gastonia mistakenly allowed the business to increase the 

signage square footage.  It was later determined that this building is actually in 

Lowell and now they are requesting approval to the increase.   

 

Chairman Wilson asked if the sign was lit up.  Ms. Stowe said it is, but it is not a 

bright overpowering type of light and was nicely done.  Mr. Gates then showed 

the board what the 32ft size sign looked like.  Board Member Lamb noted that the 

Page 3



 

2 | P a g e  
 

32ft sign is too small for the size building and would be difficult to find.  Ms. 

Stowe mentioned that even the 96.4 ft size is hard to see from the highway. 

 

Chairman Wilson asked what was on the other side of the building.  Mr. Gates 

said that Northpoint bought the area, and no homes would be affected as it will be 

entirely within an industrial park and no residences.   

 

Mr. Gates informed the board that in reviewing the application per the procedure 

outlined in Section 17.10 Review Procedure of the LDO, they needed to take the 

following into consideration: 

1. The extent to which the proposed master sign plan deviates from the sign 

allowances otherwise applicable in this Article. 

2. The rationale provided by the applicant for the deviations. 

3. The extent to which the master sign plan promotes City goals associated with 

community character, wayfinding, pedestrian-orientation, and business 

identification. 

4. The degree to which the master sign plan creatively and effectively addresses 

the issues and constraints unique to the site with regard to signage. 

With no other questions, Board Member Lamb made a motion to increase the 

signage on the discussed property from 32 to 96.4 ft to make it more visible and 

more accessible for people to find the business, seconded by Board Member 

Jennings.  The vote was unanimously in favor.  Mr. Gates stated he will ensure 

the vote goes to the City Council’s next public hearing in February. 

 

VIII. ADJOURN 

 

Motion was made to adjourn by Board Member Roberts, seconded by Board Member Seay.  

The vote was unanimously in favor.  Adjourned at 6:19 p.m. 

 

         AFFIRM: 

 

 

____________________________    ____________________________ 

Chair, Scott Wilson      Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk 

  

   

Page 4



 

 

 

 

 

 

To:  Lowell Planning Board 

From:  Joe Gates, Planning Director 

Date:  Friday, February 3, 2023 

RE: AGENDA ITEM 7A: Request to rezone approximately 4.48 acres from VSR (Vehicle 

Service & Repair District) and CIV (Civic District) to IND (Industrial District). The 

subject properties are located west of Phillips Street and east of Peachtree Street.  The 

property is owned by LOWELL OZB, LLC 

 

File # ZMA23-01 

 

OWNER:     LOWELL OZB, LLC 

 

APPLICANT: ROB PRESSLEY, LOWELL OZB LLC 

 

PROPOSED ZONING ACTION: Parcel 306363: Rezone from IND/VSR to IND 

  Parcel 127737: Rezone from CIV to IND 

 

LOCATION: Located at 701 W. First Street and 615 Phillips St 

   

TRACT SIZE:     Parcel 306363: 4.36 acres 

      Parcel 127737: 0.12 acres 

 

 

EVALUATION: 

 

Background and Site Description 
Subject hearing involves a request to rezone approximately 4.48 acres from VSR (Vehicle Service & Repair 

District) and CIV (Civic District) to IND (Industrial District). The subject properties are located west of 

Phillips Street and east of Peachtree Street.  The property is owned by LOWELL OZB, LLC 

 

Description of Adjoining Properties and Zoning 

The Storage Solutions Warehouse is located to the northeast of this property and is currently zoned 

IND (Industrial).  Directly across the street, the applicant owns approximately 10 acres that is zoned 

IND (Industrial). There are existing single-family homes (zoned MU-1, MU-2 and SFR-4 ) to the east, 

west and south of these properties. 

 

Public Facilities 

Public water and sewer currently are in the area and could serve this site. 

 

Comprehensive Plan 

The Lowell Future Land Use Map in the 2040 Lowell City Plan indicates Employment/Manufacturing 

and Civic uses as suitable for the subject property.   

   

Conclusion 

The applicant is requesting a zoning map amendment to the official zoning map. Based on the existing 

zoning and other industrial zoning in the proximity, staff recommends approval of the rezoning 

request. 

 

 

 

________________________ 

Joe Gates, CZO 

Planning Director 

 

 

 

Page 5



Statement of consistency and reasonableness (motion to approve):  The proposed rezoning is 

consistent with the land use designation identified in the Lowell City Plan 2040 and is in compliance 

with the current zoning in the area.  Therefore, the Planning Board considers an affirmative vote to be 

reasonable and in the public interest. 

 

Statement of consistency and reasonableness (motion to deny):  While the proposed rezoning can be 

considered consistent with the Lowell City Plan 2040, the Planning Board considers an affirmative 

vote to not be reasonable and not in the public interest. 

 

 

Page 6



Page 7

ZMA23-01
January 13th, 2023
YES



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



BI
RC

H 
ST

PO
TTS ST

PE
AC

HT
RE

E 
ST

AS
H 

ST

PO
PL

AR
 S

T

W SECOND ST

PERKINS ST

S 
CL

AY
 S

T

PH
IL

LI
PS

 S
TRAILROAD ST

N 
CL

AY
 S

T

W FIRST ST

IND

SFR-3 SFR-4

SFR-4

SFR-4

SFR-4

IND

CIV

MU-1
CIV CIV

MU-1 MU-1

MU-1

IND

CIV

VSR

IND
MU-2

CIVVSR

SFR-4

NC CGIA, Maxar

Page 11

Applicant: Rob Pressley/Lowell OZB

Property Owner: Rob Pressley/Lowell OZB

Meeting: February 7th, 2023

Request: IND/VSR to IND and CIV to IND

Total Tract Size: 4.48 acres

Parcel ID #'s: 306363, 127737

Subject Properties

Application
ZMA23-01



 

 

 

 

 

 

To:  Lowell Planning Board 

From:  Joe Gates, Planning Director 

Date:  Friday, February 3, 2023 

RE: AGENDA ITEM 7B: Subject hearing involves a request to amend Article 3 - 

Definitions, Abbreviations and Symbols, Article 8 - Districts, 9- Building & Lot 

Type Standards & Specifications & Article 12 - Off-Street Parking, Stacking and 

Loading Areas of the Lowell Development Ordinance to allow for a new 

classification/use category of “Industrial Flex” that would be added to the Table 

of uses allowed in the Industrial Zoning District. 

 

 

In discussions with the applicant regarding potential development of property in the IND 

(Industrial) district, staff and the applicant reviewed the permitted uses and other development 

requirements required by the Lowell Development Ordinance.  

After reviewing our ordinance, the applicant is proposing additional standards to the Lowell 

Development Ordinance to allow for a category of development known as “Industrial Flex 

Space”. This use differs from others in our uses table because it allows for a broader amount of 

uses under this “type” and allows for development of sites when the specific “end user” is 

unknown but the general type of development is known.  

If approved, these revisions would modify Articles 3 ,8, 9 and 12 of the Lowell Development 

Ordinance and would add standards for a new type of development that is not currently 

addressed in our ordinance. Staff recommends approval as presented below. 

 

Statement of Reasonableness and Consistency (motion to approve): This ordinance is 

consistent with the Lowell 2040 Comprehensive Plan and any applicable duly adopted small 

areas plans and is reasonable and in the public interest because it provides development 

provisions to the Lowell Development Ordinance and supports the goal of providing various 

options for development to the City.    

 

 

 

 

Page 12



 

 

 

• Articles 3 - Definitions - add the following word and definition. 

Industrial Flex Space - A building or portion thereof that can be used and/or easily converted to 

use for office, sales, distribution, or storage as allowed in the IND (Industrial) Zoning District. 

These spaces will typically have larger percentage of office and/or showroom space than would 

typically be found in warehouse and distribution buildings. 

 

• Article 8 Districts, Table 8.1 Table of Use - Add “Industrial Flex Space” to table of uses under the 

IND (Industrial) zoning District. 

 

Table 8.1 - Table of Uses  SIC Industrial 
(IND) 

Industrial Flex Space  L 

 

• Article 9 Building and Lot Type Standards, Section 9.8-2 Highway Lot Type Standards(A)(4) - 

Add unlined language below to existing section. 

Section 9.8-2 Highway Lot Type Standards(A) Building Placement, Parking and Vehicle Access 

Parking shall be located to the rear and/or side of the building, except parking for Industrial Flex 

Space. Parking for Industrial Flex Space uses shall be permitted in the front yard and shall be 

limited to one row of parking between the building and street. Side-yard parking may occupy no 

more than 35% of the principal frontage line and shall be buffered from the street according to 

the buffer requirements as set forth in Article 11. Parking shall not be placed in any side-yard 

abutting an intersecting street. Where dimensions of existing lots restrict parking behind 

buildings, the limitations on side-yard parking may be modified.  

• Article 12 Off-Street Parking, Stacking and Loading Areas - add the following underlined text to 

Table 12-1. 

 

Type of Land Use Off-Street Parking Spaces to be Provided: 

 Minimum Maximum 

Office, Business, and 
Industrial Uses 

  

Industrial Flex 1.5 spaces per 1,000 Sq. 
ft. gross floor area  

2.5 spaces per 1,000 Sq. 
ft. gross floor area. 

 

Page 13



Page 14

ZTA23-01



Page 15

FEBRUARY 7TH, 2023 6PM LOWELL CITY HALL

APRIL 11TH, 2023 6PM LOWELL CITY HALL



Page 16



Page 17



 

 

 

 

 

 

To:  Lowell Planning Board 

From:  Joe Gates, Planning Director 

Date:  Friday, February 3, 2023 

RE: AGENDA ITEM 7C: Consideration of text amendment request to amend Article 

8 Districts - Section 8.4-5 Civic District (CIV) 

 

The Civic District (CIV) provides a location for educational, medical, governmental, religious, 

and other institutional uses.  Staff is proposing a reduction in the Minimum Lot Size and 

Minimum Lot Width to allow for more diversity in the size and scale of development in the 

Civic District. 

If approved, these revisions would modify Article 8, Section 8.4-5 Civic District (CIV) of the 

Lowell Development Ordinance and would modify general standards for developments in the 

Civic (CIV) District. Staff recommends approval as presented below. 

Section 8.4-5 (E) General Standards and Specifications - replace the existing values as underlined below. 

Minimum 

Lot Size 

Minimum 

Lot Width 

Minimum 

Front Street 

Setback 

Minimum 

Rear Yard 

Setback 

Minimum 

Side yard 

setback  

Minimum 

Side Street 

Setback 

Corner Lot 

20,000 SF 

10,000 SF 

96’ 

70’ 

12’ 12’ or as 

required by 

buffering 

standards 

and/or 

building 

type 

whichever 

is greater 

12’ or as 

required by 

buffering 

standards 

and/or 

building 

type 

whichever 

is greater 

12’ or as 

required by 

buffering 

standards 

and/or 

building type 

whichever is 

greater 

 

Statement of Reasonableness and Consistency (motion to approve): This ordinance is 

consistent with the Lowell 2040 Comprehensive Plan and any applicable duly adopted small 

areas plans and is reasonable and in the public interest because it provides development 

provisions to the Lowell Development Ordinance and supports the goal of providing various 

options for development to the City.    

Page 18



 

 

 

 

 

 

To:  Lowell Planning Board 

From:  Joe Gates, Planning Director 

Date:  Friday, February 3, 2023 

RE: AGENDA ITEM 7D: Request to extend water service outside city limits to 

provided water service to Lowell Elementary School. 

 

Gaston County Public Works is requesting to extend a City of Lowell public water main from its 

existing location near the River View subdivision to the Lowell Elementary School property 

which lies southeast of the neighborhood. The subject property is outside the city limits of 

Lowell and lies completely within the municipal limits of McAdenville.  

Reasons for proposed extension: 

• Lowell Elementary School is currently receiving water from the Town of McAdenville. 

The existing line is at the end of the water line for that municipality which is causing 

poor water quality and supply issues. This existing line is also undersized for the schools 

current and future needs. 

• Installing a new, larger diameter line from Lowell would provide better water quality and 

supply the school with the necessary water supply needed to meet the demands. 

• The project would also include the installation of a new fire hydrant. Currently, the 

closest fire hydrant is located at the intersection of Power Drive and River View Dr (over 

300ft away).  

Per the City of Lowell Utility Allocation and Extension Policy, Reservation Process, the 

Planning Board shall review and make recommendation to the City Council for consideration 

and approval of an application that requests allocation for any project outside the incorporated 

jurisdiction of the City.  

Per Section C of the Utility Allocation and Extension Policy. The following hierarchy shall apply 

to the Boards evaluation of this request. 

C. Consistent with the intent of this policy and other public statements and policies made 

by the City Council, the following hierarchy shall apply to the evaluation of utility 

allocation requests: 

 

Page 19



 

 

1. Location:  The priority for utility extension will be given to applicants whose subject 

extension is to service an area that is within the corporate limits or otherwise incorporated 

into the City of Lowell. 

2. Industrial projects and other major employers. 

3. Commercial development projects with a mixed-use element. 

4. Non-profit or civic uses which contribute to or attract significant economic development 

to the City. 

5. Additional phases attached to residential projects with a proven record of quality product 

and economic success. 

6. Residential projects that include tangible, high quality community amenities. 

7. Residential projects that include diverse products and opportunities. 

8. Residential projects, not otherwise described above. 

 

The site plan, application and  the Utility Allocation and Extension Policy has been added to this 

agenda item for your reference and review.  

 

Page 20



1 

e-mail this application along with utility plan to:
CHARLOTTE WATER 
newservicerequests@ci.charlotte.nc.us 

Capacity Assurance Review Application 
FLOW ACCEPTANCE / WILLINGNESS TO SERVE 
All requests require a utility drawing indicating that proposed water/sewer connection point(s) and sizes. 

SELECT SUBMITTAL TYPE: 
FLOW ACCEPTANCE ☐ (RESERVES CAPACITY) 

WILLINGNESS TO SERVE ☐ (DOES NOT RESERVE CAPACITY) 

Requested By 

First Name    Last name   Company, HOA, Developer, etc. 

Address Apartment/Unit # 

City    State    Zip  Email      Fax   Phone 

Project Location 

 Project Name   Phone 

 Site Address Apartment/Unit # 

 City   State     Zip   Email 

CContact Person Name

Project Information 
Complete the following: 

1. Project is    ☐ new   ☐ modification
2. Type of development (15A NCAC 02T.0114 Wastewater Design Flow Rates)

a. Residential, apartment   units 
b. Residential, townhome/condominium  units 
c. Amenity Center (sf) or Pool (people)   units 
d. Residential, single-family  lots 

i. Public Roads?  ☐ Y   ☐ N
e. Restaurant  seats 
f. Retail or retail with food prep   sf 
g. Office   #emp/shift 
h. Warehouse   #loading bays 
i. Hotel or suites   rooms 
j. School  students 

i. Cafeteria    ☐Y   ☐N

ii. Gym/Locker Rooms  ☐Y   ☐N
k. Other (provide flow calculations)

3. Will this project have a pool?  ☐ Y  ☐ N
a. If yes, pool must have a 4-inch drain line

CITY OF LOWELL City Manager, City of Lowell
101 W. First Street
Lowell, NC 28098
sattaway@lowellnc.com

DATE:  

Page 21

01/16/2023

William H. Armstrong Armstrong Glen, P.C.

P.O. Box 7326

Charlotte NC 28241 warmstrong@armstrongglen.com 704-529-0345

Water Supply to Lowell Elementary School 704-836-9118

1500 Power Drive

Lowell NC 28098 ktkiser@gaston.k12.nc.us

Kristen Kiser

540

See attached meter readings

Public Works Director, City of Lowell 
101 W. First Street
Lowell, NC 28098
tshrewsbury@lowellnc.com



2 

4. Will this project have a private sewer lift station?    ☐ Y   ☐N
5. Total wastewater flow requested (average daily flow in gpd, show calculations)
6. Commercial only: Peak wastewater flow requested (peak hourly flow in GPH):
7. Average Daily Water Demand:
8. Peak Water Demand (GPM):

9. Does this project include a 6-inch or larger private sewer line providing service to multiple buildings?   ☐Y   ☐N

10. Does this project include a 2-inchor larger private water line providing service to multiple buildings?    ☐ Y    ☐N

FOR CHARLOTTE WATER USE ONLY 

CLT Water Tracking #  Map # 

CBasin  Flow amount (gpd) 
 
Does the flow transmit through a CLT Water lift station?☐ Y  ☐N 
If yes, which station?    
WWTF:  ☐ McAlpine  ☐ McDowell  ☐ Irwin  ☐ Sugar  ☐ Mallard  ☐ Rocky River F 

City Tracking #:

    City

Basin:

Page 22

See meter readings
N/A

3,400 gallons per day
46 GPM

Rev. 04/27/2022



Page 23



City of Lowell 

Policy for Managing Utility Allocations & Extensions 
 

1 

 

 
 

PURPOSE: A Policy to Establish the Provision of Water Distribution and Sewer 
Collection Services to Serve the Corporate Limits of the City of Lowell and Incorporate 
by Extension Additional Areas Outside the Corporate Limits Which May be 
Advantageous for Annexation into the City of Lowell, North Carolina. 
  
WHEREAS, the City of Lowell, incorporated 1879, for the purpose of establishing 
essential municipal services for both current and future citizens; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lowell City Council declares the extension of potable water and 
sewer collection services into areas of need and areas of future growth to be a major 
priority; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lowell City Council desires to establish a sound policy for the 
management of both water and sewer capacity to promote orderly growth in 
accordance with the City of Lowell Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 
 
SCOPE/COVERAGE: 
 
Section 1 - Policy for Evaluating and Reserving Utility Allocations 
 

I. General Principles 
 

A. The City of Lowell has allocated substantial capital for investment in the 
infrastructure necessary to support a growing, prosperous, and healthy 
community. Water supply and wastewater treatment capacity are among 
the most important elements of this infrastructure.  

 
B. Increasing the City’s property tax base and/or revenue sources by the 

expansion and improvement of residential, commercial and industrial 
land uses and fostering a higher quality of life for its residents are the 
paramount factors by which utility allocation decisions are based.  

 
C. Consistent with the intent of this policy and other public statements and 

policies made by the City Council, the following hierarchy shall apply to 
the evaluation of utility allocation requests: 

 
1. Location:  The priority for utility extension will be given to applicants 

whose subject extension is to service an area that is within the 
corporate limits or otherwise incorporated into the City of Lowell. 

2. Industrial projects and other major employers. 
3. Commercial development projects with a mixed-use element. 

Page 24



City of Lowell 

Policy for Managing Utility Allocations & Extensions 
 

2 

 

4. Non-profit or civic uses which contribute to or attract significant 
economic development to the City. 

5. Additional phases attached to residential projects with a proven record 
of quality product and economic success. 

6. Residential projects that include tangible, high quality community 
amenities. 

7. Residential projects that include diverse products and opportunities. 
8. Residential projects, not otherwise described above. 

 
II. Reservation Process  
 

A. The owner of any project requiring utility service within the City of 
Lowell shall submit a written application for an allocation.  The 
application shall be in letter form, addressed to the City, and shall include 
detailed information on the amount of capacity necessary to serve the 
project, the nature of the project, project schedule in relation to 
consumption of utility capacity, and other supporting information 
demonstrating how the project serves the needs and interest of the City of 
Lowell.   

 
B. The Planning Board shall review and make recommendation to the City 

Council for consideration and approval all allocations, which require or 
may require a daily flow allocation of five thousand gallons (5,000 gpd) or 
more; any application that requests allocation for any project outside the 
incorporated jurisdiction of the City; and, any allocation made for a land 
use category from capacity otherwise set aside for a different land use 
type.   

 
1. Residential Subdivision Development, Mixed-use Planned 

Developments, Commercial and/or Industrial Developments, and 
Special Use Permits.  The City Council shall with deliberation 
incorporate the evaluation of utility allocation requests into the 
decision-making process associated with each of the aforementioned 
review processes established within the City’s development standards 
and specifications.  The criteria contained herein for evaluation of 
utility allocation requests shall be included as elements within the 
review process for the accompanying land use application with regard 
to conformity with City of Lowell’ policies and ordinances, planning 
practices, and consistency with the adopted City of Lowell 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan or later version. 

 

Page 25



City of Lowell 

Policy for Managing Utility Allocations & Extensions 
 

3 

 

C. The City Public Works Engineer shall review for approval all incorporated 
area applications for utility capacity, which require a daily flow allocation 
of less than five thousand gallons (5,000 gpd) for allocations. 

 
1. The City Public Works Engineer shall consider the goals articulated by 

this and related City policies when reviewing applications for utility 
allocations.  If an application is denied, the City Public Works Engineer 
shall state in writing the reasons for denial of the request. 

 
2. Appeals process.  Any applicant whose application for utility service is 

denied by the City Public Works Engineer and who believes that such 
denial is inconsistent with the goals and priorities stated by this and 
related City policies may appeal the denial for review by the City 
Council for final decision at the next regularly scheduled City Council 
meeting. 

 
 

D. Utility allocations granted under this policy shall require the requestor to 
post the tap fees within forty-five (45) days of the date the allocation is 
granted.  Failure to pay the tap fees within this period may result in 
revocation of the allocation. 
 
1. All utility allocations approved by the City shall be effective for a 

period of twenty-four (24) months.  Projects possessing an allocation 
must start construction within the time shown on the project schedule 
prepared and submitted by the developer or customer. 

 
2. Upon request by the applicant and at the discretion of the City 

Manager, an allocation may be extended for a twelve (12) month 
period.   

 
4. At the final expiration date for an unused allocation the City shall 

rescind the allocation and retain sixty percent (60%) of the applicable 
fees paid to the City. 

 
5.   Authority of the distributing of utility allocations in association with 

the City’s utility services is held exclusively by the City of Lowell.  
Utility allocations shall not be redistributed to a third party.   

 
6.   Relinquishment of allocated utilities shall be in accordance with 

Subsection II.E of this policy.      
 

Page 26



City of Lowell 

Policy for Managing Utility Allocations & Extensions 
 

4 

 

E. An allocation holder may relinquish capacity back to the City subject to 
the following policies for reimbursement of fees paid: 

 
1. If a project is unsuccessful in obtaining any required City or County 

permit or approval or any State permit or approval, and the allocation 
holder relinquishes capacity back to the City within ninety (90) days of 
the date the allocation is granted, the full amount paid on utility tap 
fees shall be reimbursed without penalty or other withholding by the 
City.  
 

2. If a project is successful in obtaining all required City, County and 
State approvals and agrees to relinquish the total capacity allocation 
granted back to the City within ninety (90) days following receipt of 
final permit approval from the City, then the total amount of the utility 
capacity fees paid to the City shall be returned without penalty or 
other withholding by the City. 
 

3. If a project is unsuccessful in obtaining any required City or County 
permit or approval or any State permit or approval and holds an 
allocation for ninety (90) or more days, but relinquishes back to the 
City the full amount of allocation within fewer than six (6) months 
beyond the scheduled date for start of construction, then twenty 
percent (20%) of the total utility tap fees shall be retained by the City 
and the remaining amount shall be returned to the applicant.  

 
4. If a project is successful in obtaining all required City, County and 

State approvals and holds an allocation for ninety (90) or more days 
following receipt of final permit approval from the City, but 
relinquishes back to the City the full amount of allocation within fewer 
than six (6) months beyond the scheduled date for start of 
construction, then twenty percent (20%) of the total utility tap fees 
shall be retained by the City and the remaining amount shall be 
returned to the applicant. 
 

5. If a project is or is not successful in obtaining all required City, County 
and State approvals and the allocation holder agrees to relinquish the 
total capacity allocation granted back to the City after six (6) months 
beyond the scheduled date for start of construction, but within twelve 
(12) months beyond the scheduled date for start of construction, then 
thirty percent (30%) of the total utility tap fees shall be retained by the 
City and the remaining amount shall be returned to the applicant. 
 

Page 27



City of Lowell 

Policy for Managing Utility Allocations & Extensions 
 

5 

 

6. If a project is or is not successful in obtaining all required City, County 
and State approvals and the allocation holder agrees to relinquish the 
total capacity allocation granted back to the City after twelve (12) 
months beyond the scheduled date for start of construction, but within 
eighteen (18) months beyond the scheduled date for start of 
construction, then forty percent (40%) of the total utility tap fees shall 
be retained by the City and the remaining amount shall be returned to 
the applicant. 
 

7. If a project is or is not successful in obtaining all required City, County 
and State approvals and the allocation holder agrees to relinquish the 
total capacity allocation granted back to the City after eighteen (18) 
months beyond the scheduled date for start of construction, but within 
twenty-four (24) months beyond the scheduled date for start of 
construction, then fifty percent (50%) of the total utility tap fees shall 
be retained by the City and the remaining amount shall be returned to 
the applicant. 

 
8. If a project is or is not successful in obtaining all required City, County 

and State approvals and has not demonstrated significant construction 
advancement in the proposed project within twenty-four (24) months 
beyond the scheduled date for start of construction, then the City shall 
rescind the allocation and retain sixty percent (60%) of the applicable 
fees paid to the City and the remaining amount shall be returned to the 
applicant. 

 
F. Granting of a utility allocation does not imply or confer approval of any 

other applications or reviews as may be required by City Ordinance or 
policy and does not imply or create any vested right per G.S 160D-108. 

 
G. If the City of Lowell approves an allocation for utility capacity for a 

project and a permit for such project is ultimately denied by the North 
Carolina Department of Environmental Quality, its successors or other 
responsible regulatory agency, then the City of Lowell shall bear no 
liability for any costs incurred by the applicant, nor bear further 
responsibility in the matter.  In such cases, applicable utility access fees, if 
previously collected, shall be returned as provided in Subsection II.E. 

 
  

Page 28



City of Lowell 

Policy for Managing Utility Allocations & Extensions 
 

6 

 

III. Capacity Accounting 
 

A. Due to weather related factors, the regulatory environment, and the 
dynamic nature of both water resources and wastewater flow and 
treatment, accounting of available utility capacity is, by its very nature, 
inexact.  The City of Lowell shall seek to track the amount of capacity that 
may be available for allocation; however, such reports do not constitute a 
policy statement, commitment or guarantee on the amount of capacity 
available for allocation.   

 
1. The City Public Works Engineer shall prepare and incorporate as part 

of the program established hereunder a schedule of utility capacity 
available and a list of allocations granted. 

 
2. The City Public Works Engineer shall make at least annual reports to 

the City Council regarding the status of utility capacities available and 
allocations granted. 

 
Section 2 - Utility Extension Policy 

 
I. General Principles 

 
A. The City of Lowell has allocated substantial capital for investment in the 

infrastructure necessary to support a growing, prosperous, and healthy 
community.  Water supply and wastewater treatment capacity are among 
the most important elements of this infrastructure.  

 
B. Increasing the City’s property tax base and/or revenue by the expansion 

and improvement of residential, commercial and industrial, and/or civic 
land uses and fostering a higher quality of life for its residents are the 
paramount factors by which utility allocation decisions are based.  

 
C. Consistent with the intent of this policy and other public statements and 

policies made by the City Council, the following hierarchy shall apply to 
the evaluation of utility extension requests: 

 
1. Location:  The priority for utility extension will be given to applicants 

whose subject extension is to service an area that is within the 
corporate limits or otherwise incorporated into the City of Lowell. 

2. Industrial projects and other major employers. 
3. Commercial development projects with a mixed-use element. 
4. Non-profit or civic uses which contribute to or attract significant 

economic development to the City. 

Page 29



City of Lowell 

Policy for Managing Utility Allocations & Extensions 
 

7 

 

5. Additional phases attached to residential projects with a proven record 
of quality product and economic success. 

6. Residential projects that include tangible, high quality community 
amenities. 

7. Residential projects that include diverse products and opportunities. 
8. Residential projects, not otherwise described above. 

 
D. The planning and extension of water and sewer systems of the City of Lowell 

shall be accomplished in accordance with the following general principles: 
 

1. Extensions shall be made to promote the orderly growth of the 
community.  The minimum distance for any extension of a water main or 
sanitary sewer main shall be determined by City Council.  In general, the 
minimum distance for extensions shall be one platted block or, in the case 
of water mains, from main line valve to main line valve; and in the case of 
sanitary sewer extensions, from manhole to manhole. 
 

2. The size of water mains and sanitary sewer mains to be installed, and the 
other required system facilities shall be determined by the City Council in 
accordance with the recognized standards and accepted engineering 
practices and design, and in accordance with applicable system plans 
adopted by the City Council.  
 

3. The City shall be responsible for the maintenance, operation, control and 
ownership of all water and sewer facilities. 
 

4. Developers of subdivisions shall be responsible for the full cost of 
installing utilities within their own subdivisions, and for the full cost of 
any mains or outfalls required to connect said subdivisions to the water or 
sewer systems of the City existing at the time.  This provision shall apply 
to all subdivisions whether within or outside of the corporate limits. 

 
II. Application for Extension and Approval of Extension Application 

 
A. Any property owner or owners desiring water or sanitary sewer service shall 

apply in writing to the City Council requesting the extension of water or 
sanitary sewer service or both.  No request for the extension of services shall 
be considered unless submitted in writing in accordance with this Chapter 
and applicable provisions of the City of Lowell Development Ordinance. 

 
  

Page 30



City of Lowell 

Policy for Managing Utility Allocations & Extensions 
 

8 

 

B. The applicant shall be required to submit as part of the application, and prior 
to approval, such information, plans, specifications, or other data as may be 
required to adequately determine if the requirements of this Chapter and 
applicable provisions of the City of Lowell Development Ordinance are to be 
met. 

 
C. Prior to final approval by the City, the applicant shall furnish to the City all 

necessary information, reports, plans and specifications as well as appropriate 
fees payable to the City and documentation of all required permits from other 
units of government and their agencies. 

 
D. When application is made for a water or sewer extension or both to serve an 

area or development that is planned as part of a larger development project 
or subdivision, all of which is not to be developed at the time application is 
made, the owner or owners shall submit plans in sufficient detail in order to 
determine the size and type facilities which will be necessary to serve the 
entire development or subdivision when completed. 

 
E. No extension to the water or sanitary sewer system of the City shall be made, 

and no application approved, except in accordance with the requirements of 
this Section and the consistent with the adopted City of Lowell 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan or later version. 
 

III. Financing Extensions within the Corporate Limits 
 

A. Extensions to Existing Lots, Parcels or Developed Property. 
 

1. When application is received requesting the extension of water or sanitary 
sewer service or both to serve property, within the corporate limits, which 
is developed or where streets have been previously dedicated and 
accepted by the City, and where the area is not part of a new subdivision, 
the City Public Works Engineer or other person designated by the City 
Council shall estimate the cost of the project and present the application 
for the extension, the estimated cost and other required information to the 
City Council for consideration.  If the application is approved by the City 
Council, and subject to the availability of funds, the City will install or 
have installed by contract under its supervision, the extensions which 
have been approved, and the extensions shall be financed in accordance 
with this Section. 

 
  

Page 31



City of Lowell 

Policy for Managing Utility Allocations & Extensions 
 

9 

 

2. Upon receipt of a petition to extend a water and/or sewer main, the City 
Council has the following five options for response: 

 
a. Install the extension at the City’s expense. 
b. Approve and allow the petitioner to install the extension at 

petitioner’s expense. 
c. Install the extension at the petitioner’s expense. 
d. Install and jointly finance the extension in cooperation with the 

petitioner. 
e. Deny the request.  

 
3. The criteria under which an option will be chosen are generally 

defined herein; however, the City Council may act according to any 
aforementioned option, which it feels is in the best interest of the City. 

 
4. When the City determines that it is advisable to install larger size lines or 

facilities than are necessary to serve the benefited property, the difference 
in the cost of the larger size facilities over the cost of the facilities required 
to serve the benefited property the extensions shall be paid by the City and 
excluded from the total cost to be shared by the property owner(s) and the 
City as provided herein. 

 
B. Extension by the City Council's Initiative.  Nothing in this Chapter shall 

prevent the City Council from extending water or sanitary sewer mains or 
both within the corporate limits on their own initiative without receipt of an 
application from property owners and to assess the cost of such extensions in 
accordance with Subsection III.A above, when, in the opinion of the City 
Council, the general public interest requires such extensions of service. 

 
IV. Financing Extensions to Subdivisions and Properties Outside of the Corporate Limits 
 
The financing of extensions of water or sanitary sewer service or both to properties located 
outside of the corporate limits or to subdivisions for which the extension of service has not 
been approved as of the date of adoption of this Ordinance shall be performed in accordance 
with the provisions of this Article and other applicable City Ordinances including but not 
limited to the City of Lowell Development Ordinance. 
 

A. All applications for water and sewer extensions to serve properties located 
outside of the corporate limits or to serve subdivisions, for which an 
application for extension has not been approved as of the date of this 
Ordinance, shall be made in the same manner and under the same 
requirements as provided for in Subsection III.A and Subsection III.B. 

 

Page 32



City of Lowell 

Policy for Managing Utility Allocations & Extensions 
 

10 

 

B. If an application is approved by the City Council, the owner or owners shall 
be required to pay 100% of the total cost of all extensions.  However, the City 
may participate to the extent agreed upon by the City Council in the cost of 
larger size mains that are in excess of the size mains required to serve the 
project.  No reimbursement by the City shall be made upon annexation and 
all water and sewer lines connected to the City system and located outside of 
the corporate limits shall become the property of the City at the time those 
facilities are connected. 

 
C. All applicants requesting utility services shall, at the request of the City, file 

a petition for annexation to the City.  Failure to file a petition for voluntary 
annexation or satellite annexation on notice from the City may result in 
immediate termination of water service upon finding by the City Council 
of a breach of the agreement for the provision of water service. 

 
V.  Specifications; Ownership 
 
Any water mains or sanitary sewer mains, lift stations, pumping stations, tanks, controls, 
telemetry, easements and/or other appurtenances extended under the provisions of this 
Chapter shall be installed and constructed in accordance with the approved plans, 
specifications and other requirements of the City.  All facilities installed under the 
provisions of this Chapter, whether within or outside the corporate limits, shall become the 
sole property of the City and under its jurisdiction and control for any and all purposes 
whatsoever at the time those facilities are connected to the City system.  The property owner 
or owners shall grant to the City such utility easement as the City may require.  In addition, 
a deed to the City for water or sewer facilities installed which are located outside the 
corporate limits, the cost of which is borne by the applicant or property owners, shall be 
executed prior to the time any extensions provided for in this Chapter are connected to the 
City system. 
 

 

 

ADOPTED on this the __th day of ________________ 2021 

 

 s/  ____________________________ s/  _______________________________ 

 Sandy Railey, Mayor   Beverly Harris, City Clerk 

 
 

Page 33



Construction Drawings for

C
ov

er
 S

he
et

1

LOCATION MAP
SCALE: 1 = 500'

Water Extension to Lowell
Elementary School

UTILITY PROVIDERS:

W
A

T
E

R
 E

X
T

E
N

SI
O

N
 T

O
 L

O
W

E
L

L
E

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
 S

C
H

O
O

L

 Sheet Index

Sheet Number Sheet Title

1 Cover Sheet

2-3

Water Main Details

8

5-6

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

01/13/2023

7 Erosion Control Plan

Erosion Control Details

General & Grassing Notes

PRELIMINARY - DO NOT USE
FOR CONSTRUCTION

A
rm

st
ro

n
g 

G
le

n
, P

.C
.

Water Main Plan4

9 Traffic Control Details

M
:\
P
R
O
JE
C
T
 
F
IL
E
S
\
2
2
10
5
 
-
 
Lo
w
e
ll 
W
a
te
r 
S
u
p
p
ly
\
A
c
a
d
\
D
e
si
g
n
\
Lo
w
e
ll 
C
o
ve
r.
d
w
g
, 
0
1-

C
O
V
E
R
, 
1/

13
/
2
0
2
3
 
9
:3
7
:3
4
 
A
M

Page 34

Labella review 
2/1/23

Indicate City of Lowell as the utility owner
City of Lowell Public Works Dept
704-824-3518
101 W. First Street
Lowell, NC 28098

GASTON COUNTY



2 9

W
A

T
E

R
 E

X
T

E
N

SI
O

N
 T

O
L

O
W

E
L

L
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
SC

H
O

O
L

A
P
P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

C
A

D
 F

IL
E

 P
A

T
H

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y

P
R

E
P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
D

A
T

E

JO
B

 N
O

.

O
F

S
C

A
L

E

D
A

T
E

S
H

E
E

T
N

O
.

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

Pl
an

s P
re

pa
re

d 
B

y:

A
rm

st
ro

n
g 

G
le

n
, P

.C
.

P
R

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
- 

D
O

 N
O

T 
U

SE
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 N
O

T
E

S

Page 35

Add note for minimum depth of cover over pipe per Standard Specifications 

Add note that maximum depth of cover shall not exceed 5' 

It is recommended to copy/paste relevant sections of the Gastonia standard
specifications to the plan sheets for reference during construction. 

, LATEST EDITION.

CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE ACCESS TO SPECIFICATIONS AND
DETAILS AT ALL TIMES ONSITE



3 9

W
A

T
E

R
 E

X
T

E
N

SI
O

N
 T

O
L

O
W

E
L

L
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
SC

H
O

O
L

A
P
P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

C
A

D
 F

IL
E

 P
A

T
H

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y

P
R

E
P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
D

A
T

E

JO
B

 N
O

.

O
F

S
C

A
L

E

D
A

T
E

S
H

E
E

T
N

O
.

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

Pl
an

s P
re

pa
re

d 
B

y:

A
rm

st
ro

n
g 

G
le

n
, P

.C
.

P
R

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
- 

D
O

 N
O

T 
U

SE
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
G

R
A

SS
IN

G
 N

O
T

E
S

 : 

: 
—

: 
: 

: 

—
—

·
·

·

·

·

·

Page 36



40200
Feet

HORIZONTAL SCALE: 1" = 20'

20

4

W
A

T
E

R
 M

A
IN

 P
L

A
N

9

W
A

T
E

R
 E

X
T

E
N

SI
O

N
 T

O
L

O
W

E
L

L
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
SC

H
O

O
L

A
P
P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

C
A

D
 F

IL
E

 P
A

T
H

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y

P
R

E
P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
D

A
T

E

JO
B

 N
O

.

O
F

S
C

A
L

E

D
A

T
E

S
H

E
E

T
N

O
.

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

Pl
an

s P
re

pa
re

d 
B

y:

A
rm

st
ro

n
g 

G
le

n
, P

.C
.

P
R

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
- 

D
O

 N
O

T 
U

SE
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

Page 37

Permits needed:

NCDOT 
DWI water extension permit 
NCDENR

Label lengths of restrained joint
pipe or label area of required
concrete blocking at all bends

Label clearance between water
line and storm pipe; indicate if
crossing is over /under; ensure
minimum clearance and cover is
achieved

Existing blowoff? remove
valve with blowoff removal

pipe trench should be
excavated beyond 1:1
theoretical slope from edge
of pavement, or provide
active shoring ; confirm
requirements with NCDOT

8"

will service line connection to the McAdenville
water main be abandoned? Address with
notes/plan for abandonment 
 

detail shows above
ground enclosure

Label clearance between water line
and gas; indicate if crossing is over
/under; ensure minimum clearance is
achieved

Replace concrete
sidewalk to match existing

suggested alignment to get more distance from
edge of street pavement

Label the isolation valve
and box



5

W
A

T
E

R
 M

A
IN

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

9

W
A

T
E

R
 E

X
T

E
N

SI
O

N
 T

O
L

O
W

E
L

L
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
SC

H
O

O
L

A
P
P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

C
A

D
 F

IL
E

 P
A

T
H

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y

P
R

E
P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
D

A
T

E

JO
B

 N
O

.

O
F

S
C

A
L

E

D
A

T
E

S
H

E
E

T
N

O
.

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

Pl
an

s P
re

pa
re

d 
B

y:

A
rm

st
ro

n
g 

G
le

n
, P

.C
.

P
R

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
- 

D
O

 N
O

T 
U

SE
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

M
:\
P
R
O
JE
C
T
 
F
IL
E
S
\
2
2
10
5
 
-
 
Lo
w
e
ll 
W
a
te
r 
S
u
p
p
ly
\
A
c
a
d
\
D
e
si
g
n
\
Lo
w
e
ll 
W
A
T
E
R
 
D
e
t.
d
w
g
, 
W
A
T
 
D
E
T
 
1,
 
1/

13
/
2
0
2
3
 
9
:1
0
:3
3
 
A
M

Page 38

use detail 71B-7 
which does not place valve in pavement

Provide specification for electronics to the top of box lid for electronic read. Confirm requirements
with Lowell Public works director.



6

W
A

T
E

R
 M

A
IN

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

9

W
A

T
E

R
 E

X
T

E
N

SI
O

N
 T

O
L

O
W

E
L

L
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
SC

H
O

O
L

A
P
P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

C
A

D
 F

IL
E

 P
A

T
H

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y

P
R

E
P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
D

A
T

E

JO
B

 N
O

.

O
F

S
C

A
L

E

D
A

T
E

S
H

E
E

T
N

O
.

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

Pl
an

s P
re

pa
re

d 
B

y:

A
rm

st
ro

n
g 

G
le

n
, P

.C
.

P
R

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
- 

D
O

 N
O

T 
U

SE
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

PAVEMENT SCHEDULE

M
:\
P
R
O
JE
C
T
 
F
IL
E
S
\
2
2
10
5
 
-
 
Lo
w
e
ll 
W
a
te
r 
S
u
p
p
ly
\
A
c
a
d
\
D
e
si
g
n
\
Lo
w
e
ll 
W
A
T
E
R
 
D
e
t.
d
w
g
, 
W
A
T
 
D
E
T
 
2
, 
1/

13
/
2
0
2
3
 
9
:2
7
:5
1 
A
M

Page 39

Suggested: Full stone envelope for PVC
pipes operating under pressure may not be
necessary, unless existing soil conditions
warrant additional support



SF
SF

SF

LOD

LO
D

LOD
LOD

LOD
LOD

LOD
LOD LOD LOD

LOD
LOD LOD LOD LOD LOD LOD LOD

LOD
LOD

LOD
LOD LO

D

LOD

LO
D

LO
D

LOD LOD LOD

LO
D

LO
D

LO
D

LO
D

LO
D

LO
D

LO
D

LO
D

LOD
LOD

LOD

LO
D

LO
DLOD

LOD
LOD

LOD
LODLODLODLOD

LODLOD
LOD

LOD

LOD

LOD

LOD
LOD

LOD

LOD

LOD

LOD

SF
SF

40200
Feet

HORIZONTAL SCALE: 1" = 20'

20

7

E
R

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 P

L
A

N
9

W
A

T
E

R
 E

X
T

E
N

SI
O

N
 T

O
L

O
W

E
L

L
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
SC

H
O

O
L

A
P
P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

C
A

D
 F

IL
E

 P
A

T
H

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y

P
R

E
P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
D

A
T

E

JO
B

 N
O

.

O
F

S
C

A
L

E

D
A

T
E

S
H

E
E

T
N

O
.

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

Pl
an

s P
re

pa
re

d 
B

y:

A
rm

st
ro

n
g 

G
le

n
, P

.C
.

P
R

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
- 

D
O

 N
O

T 
U

SE
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

SILT FENCESF SF
LIMITS OF DISTURBED AREALODLOD

GENERAL EROSION CONTROL LEGEND

COMPOST SOCK

INLET PROTECTION

M
:\
P
R
O
JE
C
T
 
F
IL
E
S
\
2
2
10
5
 
-
 
Lo
w
e
ll 
W
a
te
r 
S
u
p
p
ly
\
A
c
a
d
\
D
e
si
g
n
\
Lo
w
e
ll 
E
R
O
 
P
la
n
.d
w
g
, 
E
R
O
 
P
LA

N
, 
1/

13
/
2
0
2
3
 
9
:3
5
:3
8
 
A
M

Page 40



8

E
R

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
D

E
T

A
IL

S
9

W
A

T
E

R
 E

X
T

E
N

SI
O

N
 T

O
L

O
W

E
L

L
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
SC

H
O

O
L

A
P
P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

C
A

D
 F

IL
E

 P
A

T
H

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y

P
R

E
P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
D

A
T

E

JO
B

 N
O

.

O
F

S
C

A
L

E

D
A

T
E

S
H

E
E

T
N

O
.

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

Pl
an

s P
re

pa
re

d 
B

y:

A
rm

st
ro

n
g 

G
le

n
, P

.C
.

P
R

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
- 

D
O

 N
O

T 
U

SE
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

NNCG01 GROUND STABILIZATION AND MATERIALS HANDLING EFFECTIVE: 04/01/19

GROUND STABILIZATION AND MATERIALS HANDLING PRACTICES FOR COMPLIANCE WITH
THE NCG01 CONSTRUCTION GENERAL PERMIT
Implementing the details and specifications on this plan sheet will result in the construction
activity being considered compliant with the Ground Stabilization and Materials Handling
sections of the NCG01 Construction General Permit (Sections E and F, respectively).  The
permittee shall comply with the Erosion and Sediment Control plan approved by the
delegated authority having jurisdiction. All details and specifications shown on this sheet
may not apply depending on site conditions and the delegated authority having jurisdiction.

GROUND STABILIZATION SPECIFICATION
Stabilize the ground sufficiently so that rain will not dislodge the soil.  Use one of the
techniques in the table below:

POLYACRYLAMIDES (PAMS) AND FLOCCULANTS
1. Select flocculants that are appropriate for the soils being exposed during

construction, selecting from the NC DWR List of Approved PAMS/Flocculants.
2. Apply flocculants at or before the inlets to Erosion and Sediment Control Measures.
3. Apply flocculants at the concentrations specified in the NC DWR List of Approved

PAMS/Flocculants and in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.
4. Provide ponding area for containment of treated Stormwater before discharging

offsite.
5. Store flocculants in leak-proof containers that are kept under storm-resistant cover

or surrounded by secondary containment structures.

HAZARDOUS AND TOXIC WASTE
1. Create designated hazardous waste collection areas on-site.
2. Place hazardous waste containers under cover or in secondary containment.
3. Do not store hazardous chemicals, drums or bagged materials directly on the ground.

EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE MAINTENANCE
1. Maintain vehicles and equipment to prevent discharge of fluids.
2. Provide drip pans under any stored equipment.
3. Identify leaks and repair as soon as feasible, or remove leaking equipment from the

project.
4. Collect all spent fluids, store in separate containers and properly dispose as

hazardous waste (recycle when possible).
5. Remove leaking vehicles and construction equipment from service until the problem

has been corrected.
6. Bring used fuels, lubricants, coolants, hydraulic fluids and other petroleum products

to a recycling or disposal center that handles these materials.

LITTER, BUILDING MATERIAL AND LAND CLEARING WASTE
1. Never bury or burn waste.  Place litter and debris in approved waste containers.
2. Provide a sufficient number and size of waste containers (e.g dumpster, trash

receptacle) on site to contain construction and domestic wastes.
3. Locate waste containers at least 50 feet away from storm drain inlets and surface

waters unless no other alternatives are reasonably available.
4. Locate waste containers on areas that do not receive substantial amounts of runoff

from upland areas and does not drain directly to a storm drain, stream or wetland.
5. Cover waste containers at the end of each workday and before storm events or

provide secondary containment.  Repair or replace damaged waste containers.
6. Anchor all lightweight items in waste containers during times of high winds.
7. Empty waste containers as needed to prevent overflow.  Clean up immediately if

containers overflow.
8. Dispose waste off-site at an approved disposal facility.
9. On business days, clean up and dispose of waste in designated waste containers.

PAINT AND OTHER LIQUID WASTE
1. Do not dump paint and other liquid waste into storm drains, streams or wetlands.
2. Locate paint washouts at least 50 feet away from storm drain inlets and surface

waters unless no other alternatives are reasonably available.
3. Contain liquid wastes in a controlled area.
4. Containment must be labeled, sized and placed appropriately for the needs of site.
5. Prevent the discharge of soaps, solvents, detergents and other liquid wastes from

construction sites.

PORTABLE TOILETS
1. Install portable toilets on level ground, at least 50 feet away from storm drains,

streams or wetlands unless there is no alternative reasonably available.  If 50 foot
offset is not attainable, provide relocation of portable toilet behind silt fence or place
on a gravel pad and surround with sand bags.

2. Provide staking or anchoring of portable toilets during periods of high winds or in high
foot traffic areas.

3. Monitor portable toilets for leaking and properly dispose of any leaked material.
Utilize a licensed sanitary waste hauler to remove leaking portable toilets and replace
with properly operating unit.

HERBICIDES, PESTICIDES AND RODENTICIDES
1. Store and apply herbicides, pesticides and rodenticides in accordance with label

restrictions.
2. Store herbicides, pesticides and rodenticides in their original containers with the

label, which lists directions for use, ingredients and first aid steps in case of
accidental poisoning.

3. Do not store herbicides, pesticides and rodenticides in areas where flooding is
possible or where they may spill or leak into wells, stormwater drains, ground water
or surface water.  If a spill occurs, clean area immediately.

4. Do not stockpile these materials onsite.

CONCRETE WASHOUTS
1. Do not discharge concrete or cement slurry from the site.
2. Dispose of, or recycle settled, hardened concrete residue in accordance with local

and state solid waste regulations and at an approved facility.
3. Manage washout from mortar mixers in accordance with the above item and in

addition place the mixer and associated materials on impervious barrier and within
lot perimeter silt fence.

4. Install temporary concrete washouts per local requirements, where applicable.  If an
alternate method or product is to be used, contact your approval authority for
review and approval.  If local standard details are not available, use one of the two
types of temporary concrete washouts provided on this detail.

5. Do not use concrete washouts for dewatering or storing defective curb or sidewalk
sections.  Stormwater accumulated within the washout may not be pumped into or
discharged to the storm drain system or receiving surface waters.  Liquid waste must
be pumped out and removed from project.

6. Locate washouts at least 50 feet from storm drain inlets and surface waters unless it
can be shown that no other alternatives are reasonably available.  At a minimum,
install protection of storm drain inlet(s) closest to the washout which could receive
spills or overflow.

7. Locate washouts in an easily accessible area, on level ground and install a stone
entrance pad in front of the washout.  Additional controls may be required by the
approving authority.

8. Install at least one sign directing concrete trucks to the washout within the project
limits.  Post signage on the washout itself to identify this location.

9. Remove leavings from the washout when at approximately 75% capacity to limit
overflow events.  Replace the tarp, sand bags or other temporary structural
components when no longer functional.  When utilizing alternative or proprietary
products, follow manufacturer's instructions.

10. At the completion of the concrete work, remove remaining leavings and dispose of
in an approved disposal facility.  Fill pit, if applicable, and stabilize any disturbance
caused by removal of washout.

EARTHEN STOCKPILE MANAGEMENT
1. Show stockpile locations on plans.  Locate earthen-material stockpile areas at least

50 feet away from storm drain inlets, sediment basins, perimeter sediment controls
and surface waters unless it can be shown no other alternatives are reasonably
available.

2. Protect stockpile with silt fence installed along toe of slope with a minimum offset of
five feet from the toe of stockpile.

3. Provide stable stone access point when feasible.
4. Stabilize stockpile within the timeframes provided on this sheet and in accordance

with the approved plan and any additional requirements.  Soil stabilization is defined
as vegetative, physical or chemical coverage techniques that will restrain accelerated
erosion on disturbed soils for temporary or permanent control needs.

SECTION E: GROUND STABILIZATION
Required Ground Stabilization Timeframes

Note: After the permanent cessation of construction activities, any areas with temporary
ground stabilization shall be converted to permanent ground stabilization as soon as
practicable but in no case longer than 90 calendar days after the last land disturbing
activity.  Temporary ground stabilization shall be maintained in a manner to render the
surface stable against accelerated erosion until permanent ground stabilization is achieved.

Site Area Description Timeframe variations

-7 days for perimeter dikes, swales,
ditches, perimeter slopes and HQW Zones
-10 days for Falls Lake Watershed unless
there is zero slope

Stabilize within this
many calendar
days after ceasing
land disturbance

7

7

7

14

None

None

(a) Perimeter dikes,
swales, ditches, and
perimeter slopes

(b) High Quality Water
(HQW) Zones

(c) Slopes steeper than
3:1

If slopes are 10' or less in length and are
not steeper than 2:1, 14 days are
allowed

(d) Slopes 3:1 to 4:1

(e) Areas with slopes
flatter than 4:1 14

-7 days for slopes greater than 50' in
length and with slopes steeper than 4:1
-7 days for perimeter dikes, swales,
ditches, perimeter slopes and HQW
Zones
-10 days for Falls Lake Watershed

NCG01 SELF-INSPECTION, RECORDKEEPING AND REPORTING EFFECTIVE: 04/01/19

PART III
SELF-INSPECTION, RECORDKEEPING AND REPORTING

SECTION A: SELF-INSPECTION
Self-inspections are required during normal business hours in accordance with the table
below.  When adverse weather or site conditions would cause the safety of the inspection
personnel to be in jeopardy, the inspection may be delayed until the next business day on
which it is safe to perform the inspection.  In addition, when a storm event of equal to or
greater than 1.0 inch occurs outside of normal business hours, the self-inspection shall be
performed upon the commencement of the next business day.  Any time when inspections
were delayed shall be noted in the Inspection Record.

NOTE: The rain inspection resets the required 7 calendar day inspection requirement.

PART III
SELF-INSPECTION, RECORDKEEPING AND REPORTING

SECTION B: RECORDKEEPING
1. E&SC Plan Documentation

The approved E&SC plan as well as any approved deviation shall be kept on the site.  The
approved E&SC plan must be kept up-to-date throughout the coverage under this permit.
The following items pertaining to the E&SC plan shall be kept on site and available for
inspection at all times during normal business hours.

2. Additional Documentation to be Kept on Site
    In addition to the E&SC plan documents above, the following items shall be kept on the
    site and available for inspectors at all times during normal business hours, unless the
    Division provides a site-specific exemption based on unique site conditions that make
    this requirement not practical:

(a) This General Permit as well as the Certificate of Coverage, after it is received.

(b) Records of inspections made during the previous twelve months.  The permittee shall
record the required observations on the Inspection Record Form provided by the
Division or a similar inspection form that includes all the required elements.  Use of
electronically-available records in lieu of the required paper copies will be allowed if
shown to provide equal access and utility as the hard-copy records.

PART III
SELF-INSPECTION, RECORDKEEPING AND REPORTING

SECTION C: REPORTING
1. Occurrences that Must be Reported

Permittees shall report the following occurrences:
(a) Visible sediment deposition in a stream or wetland.

(b) Oil spills if:
· They are 25 gallons or more,
· They are less than 25 gallons but cannot be cleaned up within 24 hours,
· They cause sheen on surface waters (regardless of volume), or
· They are within 100 feet of surface waters (regardless of volume).

   (c)    Releases of hazardous substances in excess of reportable quantities under Section 311
of the Clean Water Act (Ref: 40 CFR 110.3 and 40 CFR 117.3) or Section 102 of CERCLA
(Ref: 40 CFR 302.4) or G.S. 143-215.85.

(d) Anticipated bypasses and unanticipated bypasses.

(e) Noncompliance with the conditions of this permit that may endanger health or the
environment.

2. Reporting Timeframes and Other Requirements
After a permittee becomes aware of an occurrence that must be reported, he shall contact
the appropriate Division regional office within the timeframes and in accordance with the
other requirements listed below.  Occurrences outside normal business hours may also be
reported to the Department's Environmental Emergency Center personnel at (800)
858-0368.

3. Documentation to be Retained for Three Years
    All data used to complete the e-NOI and all inspection records shall be maintained for a period
    of three years after project completion and made available upon request. [40 CFR 122.41]

PART II, SECTION G, ITEM (4)
DRAW DOWN OF SEDIMENT BASINS FOR MAINTENANCE OR CLOSE OUT

Sediment basins and traps that receive runoff from drainage areas of one acre or more shall use outlet structures that withdraw water from the surface when these devices need to be drawn down
for maintenance or close out unless this is infeasible.  The circumstances in which it is not feasible to withdraw water from the surface shall be rare (for example, times with extended cold weather).
Non-surface withdrawals from sediment basins shall be allowed only when all of the following criteria have been met:

(a) The E&SC plan authority has been provided with documentation of the non-surface withdrawal and the specific time periods or conditions in which it will occur.  The non-surface withdrawal
shall not commence until the E&SC plan authority has approved these items,

(b) The non-surface withdrawal has been reported as an anticipated bypass in accordance with Part III, Section C, Item (2)(c) and (d) of this permit,
(c) Dewatering discharges are treated with controls to minimize discharges of pollutants from stormwater that is removed from the sediment basin.  Examples of appropriate controls include

properly sited, designed and maintained dewatering tanks, weir tanks, and filtration systems,
(d) Vegetated, upland areas of the sites or a properly designed stone pad is used to the extent feasible at the outlet of the dewatering treatment devices described in Item (c) above,
(e) Velocity dissipation devices such as check dams, sediment traps, and riprap are provided at the discharge points of all dewatering devices, and
(f) Sediment removed from the dewatering treatment devices described in Item (c) above is disposed of in a manner that does not cause deposition of sediment into waters of the United States.

” ” 

’ ‘ ’

”    ” 
”                         

’

M
:\
P
R
O
JE
C
T
 
F
IL
E
S
\
2
2
10
5
 
-
 
Lo
w
e
ll 
W
a
te
r 
S
u
p
p
ly
\
A
c
a
d
\
D
e
si
g
n
\
Lo
w
e
ll 
E
R
O
 
D
E
T
.d
w
g
, 
E
R
O
, 
1/

13
/
2
0
2
3
 
9
:3
3
:5
5
 
A
M

Page 41



9

T
R

A
FF

IC
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

D
E

T
A

IL
S

9

W
A

T
E

R
 E

X
T

E
N

SI
O

N
 T

O
L

O
W

E
L

L
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
SC

H
O

O
L

A
P
P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

C
A

D
 F

IL
E

 P
A

T
H

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y

P
R

E
P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
D

A
T

E

JO
B

 N
O

.

O
F

S
C

A
L

E

D
A

T
E

S
H

E
E

T
N

O
.

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

Pl
an

s P
re

pa
re

d 
B

y:

A
rm

st
ro

n
g 

G
le

n
, P

.C
.

P
R

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
- 

D
O

 N
O

T 
U

SE
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

M
:\
P
R
O
JE
C
T
 
F
IL
E
S
\
2
2
10
5
 
-
 
Lo
w
e
ll 
W
a
te
r 
S
u
p
p
ly
\
A
c
a
d
\
D
e
si
g
n
\
Lo
w
e
ll 
T
R
A
F
F
IC
 
D
E
T
A
IL
S
.d
w
g
, 
T
C
, 
1/

13
/
2
0
2
3
 
9
:3
6
:4
3
 
A
M

Page 42


